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The Salter House, originally located on the northwest corner of the intersection 
of Maryland Route 447 (Morgnec Road) and Maryland Route 290, is thought to have been 
built circa 1773. The 2%-story brick building (32' x 20') changed ownership many 
times. It was abandoned in 1970 and vandalized prior to being moved in 1973 by the 
current owner, Frank M. Muggins. At that time, the house was designated for demolition, 
having been declared a traffic hazard by the Maryland Department of Transportation, 
along with three other early buildings at the intersection. The Salter House is the 
only one of these that remains near the intersection; it is located approximately 250 
feet from its original site.

In the relocation, the house orientation was changed from fronting on Morgnec 
Road, facing south to fronting on Maryland Route 290, facing east. (See attached site 
relocation plan.) The building was stabilized and the masonry work restored after 
the move. The thirty foot, three-bay, one and one-half story frame wing with chimney 
and the one-story, L-shaped shed porch which turned with the highway intersection were 
destroyed prior to relocation. A fire in the house destroyed the original stair 
and damaged much of the trim. A new cedar shingle roof was put on the house after its 
relocation.

The building is an imposing structure, approximately thirty feet high to the 
ridge, laid in Flemish bond on the important north and east sides, which originally 
fronted the intersection, with glazed headers on the north gable. Chimneys are in 
each gable. A simple cornice with crown moulding projected approximately twelve 
inches at the second floor ceiling level. The fenestration of the house is irregular. 
The east facade is four bays long, with a door in the first and third bays from the 
north,and windows in the other two bays on the first floor, four windows on the second 
and two dormers on this side of the roof. There is one door and no windows on the 
first floor of the west side, three windows on the second floor, and two dormers on 
the roof. On the south end there is one door on the west side on the first story and 
two windows on either side of the chimney in the gable. On the north end a door in 
the east bay and a window in the west on the first floor are the only openings. Sash on 
the first floor have 8/12 lights; those on the second have 8/12 lights and the dormers 
have 6/6 light sash. The first floor windows had paneled shutters and the second story 
windows and dormers had louvered shutters.

The interior of the house is in poor condition, waiting for rehabilitation,with 
plaster removed from the ceilings and partitions throughout the structure and partially 
from the masonry walls. There is one interior masonry wall two stories in height. 
(See floor plan.)

The first floor is di\^ed^rvto\two rooms, each with two exterior doors, plus a 
third door in the_sou^\jp^6i\ that provided access to the frame addition. The large 
(north) room Ion"theTTrst floor is tnought to have been a tavern room and later a 
store. It has beaded joists at the/y 1 high ceiling, probably originally exposed. 
The plaster ceiling and crown moulding that were probably added later have been removed. 
Remains of door and window trim indicate that a simpler style of wood trim was used 
throughout the remainder of the/nouse. A flue runs up to the chimney stack at the north 
end, but there are no fireplaces in this end of the building. The small (south) room 
has a fireplace and does not have beaded ceiling joists. It is thought that the masonry

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #!./
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The intersection of Maryland Routes 290 and 447 has a long history as a commercial 
center, beginning in the 18th century. Until 1973 three 18th century structures stood 
here, on the northeast, southwest, and northwest corners; these were the remains of what 
had grown into a small village during the 19th century. The Maryland Department of 
Transportation decided to demolish the buildings as they sat right on the intersection 
and were regarded as a traffic hazard blocking the driver's view. The Chesterville 
store (in 1860 G.W. Spry's store and in 1877 store and post office), a small brick 
structure, was moved to the Howard Johnson's tract on U.S. Route 301 in Kent County. The 
frame hotel (in 1860 Jos. Morris 1 hotel and in 1877 J. Curey's property) was moved to 
the Kent County Farm Museum site near Kennedyville. Only the Brick House or Salter House 
remains at the intersection, and it was moved 250 feet north of its original location.

The Brick House was constructed in the 18th century, probably soon after 1773. Its 
floor plan and other details reflect its use as a commercial building. One of the .two 
rooms, very much larger than the other, was unheated in the 18th century, probably 
serving as the selling and storeroom. (A stove flue was added in the 19th century.) 
The smaller room had a fireplace and was probably used by the owner's family. Both 
rooms have two exterior doors.

This structure is the only two-story, late 18th century commercial building known 
to have been constructed in a rural setting in Maryland still extant. The brickwork 
is of good quality, and all surviving features of the early house will be retained in the 
upcoming restoration. (These features include the four doors on the first floor, the 
board partitions on the second floor, and the location of the stair in the selling room.

The Brick House was a store from its construction through the 19th century. It 
was a prominent building at the intersection where it is still situated (though now 
facing another direction). It was large for its day and very unusual, if not unique, 
for its location.

The 1%-story frame wing had two rooms on each floor and a central chimney. This was 
destroyed in the 1973 move. Another 1^-story frame wing will be added during restoration.

In August, 1773 William Woodall 
k30. The property was described as 
3/4 acre . . . being part of Vianna. 
roads, on the west by Lambert Smith 1 
Spencer built the present house soon 
$1,600, and the deed reads in part: 
at the corner of the Brick house. . 
by Benjamin Riley." (BC8/176J

sold three-quarters of an acre to Isaac Spencer for 
"lying at New Market Crossroads" and "containing about 
11 It was bounded on the south and east by two main 
s lot, and on the north by "Mr. Bootes 1 land" (DD4/234, 
after purchasing the lot. He sold it in 1814 for 
"All that lot of ground in New Market . . . beginning 

. including the house kitchen and garden as occupied

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #2.
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(DESCRIPTION CONTINUED)

wall dividing these two rooms originally had a smaller passage or door between the 
two, rather than the wide opening that currently exists.

Access to the upper floors was by a narrow winding stair; the original stair, 
which was destroyed by fire, has been replaced by a new duplicate. The stair leads 
from the north (store ) room to a small hall on the second floor.

The plan of the second floor consists of the stair hall on the east and a 
small room on the west in the center, flanked by two bedrooms at either end. The 
south bedroom is enclosed entirely by brick walls, and has a fireplace on the south 
wall. A small paneled closet with three shelves is above the firebox, and opens to 
the east side of the fireplace. The north bedroom is separated from the hall and 
small room by frame partitions of vertical beaded paneling that were furred on both 
sides and plastered. This paneling was probably exposed at one time. Ceiling height 
on the second floor is 8'4".

The stairs continue to the third floor where there is a room at each end, north 
and south, with dormers on the east and west sides. On the south end there are two 
small windows flanking the chimney. Ceiling height on the third floor is 6' 10".

Door and window trim remains in the building indicating that the two upper 
floors had similar window and door trim to that in the first floor room, progressing 
from more elaborate on the first floor to least elaborate on the third floor with 
similar moulding details.
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(SIGNIFICANCE, continued)

By 1840 the post office had been established in New Market and its name changed to 
Chesterville. (JNG7/235.) Aaron L. Gooding bought the property, ^ acres in 1857. 
(JKH 1/87.) Rebecca V. Gooding acquired the property from Gooding's estate in 1879; 
she was probably his wife. (DCB 5/272.) Martenet's map of Kent County shows the Brick 
House as "A.L. Gooding's Store" in 1860. The 1877 atlas of Kent and Queen Anne's Countie 
shows it as "Mrs. Goodwin Store," probably an error, meaning Mrs. Gooding's. Mrs. 
Gooding's will mentions "my house, Store, Lot and appurtenances, in Chesterville...." 
(JCS 1/32.)

The 1959 deed for the property, from Joseph R. Spry and wife to George R. Salter 
and wife identifies this building as that "commonly known as the Brick House." It has 
since picked up the common name of the Salter House.

The present owner plans to restore the exterior of the house, including the porch 
on the (now) north and east sides and to renovate the interior using the small amount 
of original fabric that remains there. A frame wing of the same proportions as the old 
one will be built on the (now) south end of the house.
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(SIGNIFICANCE, continued)

The Chesterville Brick House was moved in 1973. Before that time it sat at the 
northwest corner of the intersection of Maryland Routes 290 and 447. It had two 
principal facades, the south and the east, which faced the public roads. It sat 
directly on the road at the corner. After its move the building sites 250 feet north 
of its original location. The principal facades face east to the road and north to a 
field. The house is set back from the road about fifty feet.

Although the building's relationship to the road, formerly on a corner, is changed, 
it is obvious from the fabric of the building, that two facades were originally 
principal ones. The doors located in each of these facades and the first floor plan in 
combination with the Flemish bond main facades allow interpretation of the building's 
original location in spite of its move.

This is the only one of the three 18th century brick commercial buildings 
formerly at this site to remain at the intersection. Although it was moved, it is 
still at the same location.



ORIGINAL FRAME STRUCTURE REMOVED

Chesterville Brick House
(Salter House)
Kent County, Maryland

Floor plans
M. Hamilton Norton, Jr.
Architect

(scale inaccurate as 
drawings have been 
reduced)

January 1978
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